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 OFFICE OF ENFORCEMENT 
 NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
 
Licensee: Digirad Imaging Solutions, Inc.     (EA-07- 223,224,225 )  

Poway, CA  (formerly Bemus Point, NY) 
Docket Nos. 030-35802 

 
Subject:    NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF  
  CIVIL PENALTY $6,500.  
 

This notification is to inform the Commission that a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition 
of Civil Penalty in the amount of $6,500 will be issued on or about April 2, 2008, to Digirad 
Imaging Solutions, Inc., a mobile nuclear medicine licensee, for two Severity Level III violations 
that are each assessed at a base civil penalty of $3,250.  These violations were categorized and 
civil penalties assessed in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy. 
Specifically, in violation of 10 CFR 30.9, the licensee failed to provide complete and accurate 
information to the NRC in a preceptor statement submitted in an April 19, 2006, license 
amendment request.  NRC requires a statement from an authorized user physician  
(the preceptor) attesting that an applicant physician meets the training and experience 
requirements in 10 CFR 35.190 to be named as an authorized user on an NRC medical license. 
Consequently, the NRC concluded that the inaccurate information provided in the preceptor 
statement could have resulted in an individual being added to an NRC license who did not fully 
meet the requirements as an authorized user.  

Additionally, in violation of 10 CFR 20.1801, the licensee did not secure from unauthorized 
removal, limit access to, or maintain control and constant surveillance of licensed material in the 
form of several 20-30 millicurie dosages of technetium-99m.  This violation occurred at several 
clients’ facilities (unrestricted areas), where client physicians who were not authorized users on 
the NRC license were allowed unauthorized access to the material.  

The licensee has committed to a number of corrective actions: verifying the credentials of 
authorized user applicants; enhancing administrative controls to ensure preceptors understand 
and provide accurate information about applicants; contacting preceptors to validate the 
information they provide; requiring applicants to sign a memorandum of understanding that 
commits them to comply with the licensee radiation safety manual that addresses receipt, use, 
and transfer of radioactive materials; disciplining nuclear medicine technologists who fail to 
implement directions on receipt and storage of licensed radioactive materials; and ensuring that 
all lease agreements for client and other facilities have appropriate language to assure proper 
access control for licensed radioactive materials.  
 
The licensee has not been specifically informed of the enforcement action.  The schedule of 
notification is as follows:   
 

Telephone Notification of Licensee   April 2, 2008 
Mailing of the Notice     April 2, 2008 
      

The State of California will be notified. 
 
 
CONTACTS:  S. Woods, OE, (301) 415-7267  N. Hilton, OE, (301) 415-3055 
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